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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of VA Tech Wabag (Philippines) Inc. (the Company),
which comprise the statements of financial position as at March 31, 2019 and 2018, and the
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash
flows for the fiscal years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at March 31, 2019 and 2018, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the fiscal years then ended in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines
(Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audits of the
financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Certified Public Accountants
Punongbayan & Araullo (PEA] is the Philippine member firm of Grant Thernton International Ltd



P&A

o GrantThornton

— =
An instinct for growth

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information for the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2019 required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue, as disclosed in Note 18 to the
financial statements is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS. Such supplementary
information is the responsibility of management. The supplementary information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.
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The Board of Directors

VA Tech Wabag (Philippines) Inc.

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of VA Tech Wabag Limited)
7th Floor, Peninsula Court Building

8735 Paseo de Roxas Avenue, Makati City

We have audited the financial statements of VA Tech Wabag (Philippines) Inc. (the Company)
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2019, on which we have rendered the attached report dated
June 21, 2018.

In compliance with the Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, as amended, we are stating that the
Company has only one stockholder owning 100 or more shares of the Company’s capital stock
as of March 31, 2019, as disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements.

CPA Reg. No. 0111202
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June 21, 2019
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VA TECH WABAG (PHILIPPINES) INC.

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of VA Tech Wabag Limited)

STATEMUNIS OF FINANUIAL PONTIONT o, Swsuritins wm g 10 )
MARCH 31, 2019 AND 2018 ! ! N Y i, W
(dmounmin Phﬂl:ppine PCSOS) Flactranic Recerds Mo J.tn:!l Divieion
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T .
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Notes 2019 .nn}l.u-.- ‘994.&" T EVIEW OF :,)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash P 10,007,796 P 33,950,808
Contract and other receivables 1,389,508,103 1,056,637,540
Other current assets 78,963,000 79,877,057
Total Current Assets 1,478,478,899 1,170,465,405
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Contract receivables 5 11,156,723 11,156,723
Property and equipment - net 7 9,205,945 12,465,422
Refundable deposits 15 3,587,233 3,618,245
Deferred tax assets - net 12 - 2,465,585
Total Non-current Assets 23,949,901 29,705,975
TOTAL ASSETS P 1,502,428,800 P 1,200,171,380
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables P 1,075,673,698 P 881,844,968
Notes payable 120,586,535 49,908,844
Due to related parties - net 13 100,435,384 82,869,465
Total Current Liabilities 1,296,695,617 1,014,623,277
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
Deferred tax liability - net 12 2,643,976 .
Total Liabilities 1,299,339,593 1,014,623,277
EQUITY 14
Capital stock 8,570,200 8,570,200
Retained earnings 194,519,007 176,977,903
Total Equity 203,089,207 185,548,103
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P 1,502,428,800 P 1,200,171,380

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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VA TECH WABAG (PHILIPPINES) INC.
A Wla'oﬂj? Ownéd Subsidiazy of VA Tech Wabag Limited)
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR'THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 AND 2018

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)
Notes 2019 2018

CONTRACT REVENUES 5 P 1,090,708,881 P 933,991,974
CONTRACT COSTS 10 952,294,880 803,788,654
GRQSS PROFIT 138,414,001 150,203,320
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (INCOME) _ o

Other operating expenses i} _ 114,848,081 92,323,281

Othe: operating incormé 11 ( 1,865,533)  ( 211,063 )

112,982,548 92,112,218

NET OPER{LTING INCOME 25,431,453 38,091,102
'PROFIT BEFORE TAX 25,431,453 38,091,102
TAX EXPENSE 12 7,890,349 11,467,372
NET PROFIT 17,541,104 26,623,730
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - -
‘TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P- 17,541,104 by 26,623,730

See. Notes to Finapcial Statemients.



VA TECH WABAG (PHILIPPINES) INC.
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiaty of VA Tech Wabag Limited)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 AND 2018

(Ammounts in Philippine Pesos)
~ Note. 2019
CAPITAL STOCK 14 8,570,200
RETAINED EARNINGS- 14
Appropriated .
Balance at beginning of year 140,080,000
Approptation during the year 50,600,060
Reversal of'-apprqptiaﬁon duding the year 10,600,000
Balance at the end of year 180,000,080
Unappropdated
Balasice at beginning of year 36,977,903
Neét profit for the year 17,541,104
Appropriation during the year 50,000,000 ).
Reversal of 'appropﬁaﬁc;u dusing the i_ye'a'r' 10,000,060
Balance at end of year 14,519,007 _
194,519,007
TOTAL EQUITY 203,089,207

See Notes.to Financial Statements.

2018

8,570,200

140,000,000

140,000,000

10,354,173
26,623,730

36,977,903

176,977,503

185,548,103




VA TECH WABAG (PHILIPPINES) INC.
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiaty of VA Tech Wabag Litnited)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 AND 2018

(Amounts i Philippine Pesos)
Notes 2019 2018
CASH FLOWS.FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax P 25.431,453 P 38,091,102
Adjustiments for:
Unrealized foreign currency loss (gain) -net- ( 12,270,917 ) 8,218,616
Interest expense v 8,125,722 984,710
Depreciation and amortization 6,903,142 5,669,939
Intg::gst'.'irlcome 11 ( 33,839) { 139,634 )
Operating profit before working capital changes 28,155,561 52,824,733
Increase in contract and other recetvables ( .326,346,796:) { 157,782,766
Increase in othef current assets ¢ 1,859,963) 47,999,264 )
Decrease {increase) in-refundable deposits 31,012 ( 1,409,780}
Increase {decrease) in trade and other payables 198,593,922 { 88,266,948 }
Inciedse in due to refated parties 18,538,116 _ 64,341,734

Cash used in.operations ( 82,888,148)  { 178,292,291

Cash paid for income tazes ( 6,768) { 27,9273

Net Cash Used in'Operating Activities ( $2,804,916) (- 178,320,218 )
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES _

Additions to property and dquipment 7 { 3,643,665 ) { 4_,078,32_8:)

Interest received 11 33,839 139,634

Net-Cash Used in Investing Activities { 3,609,826 ( 3,038,804 )
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from riotes payable 9 83,177,691 49,908,844

Repayment of notes payable 9 ( 12,500,000 ) -

Interest paid- 1 { 8,125,722 -

Net Cash From Pinzncing Activides 62,551,969 49,908,844
Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes on Cash 9,761 { 3,399,879 )
NET DECREASE IN CASH ( 23,943,012)  { 135,750,147 )
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 33,959,808 169,700,955
CASH AT END OF YEAR P 10,007,796 P 33,950,808

See Notes to Financial Statements.



VA TECH WABAG. (PHILIPPINES) INC.

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of VA Tech Wabag Limited)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2019 AND 2018
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

VA Tech Wabag (Philippines) Inc. (the. Company) was incorporated and registered
with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Cominission (SEC) on June 21, 2011,

and started its commercial operations on the same date. The Company is
incorporated to provide general, process and civil works and other setvices relating to
water and wastewater ireatment plant, pumping stations and piping networks.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of VA Tech Wabag Limited

(the parent company), 2 company incorporated and domiciled in India. The parexnt
compagy is primasdly engaged in the planning, completion and operation of drinking:
water ‘and wastewater plants for both the municipal and industrial sectors. The parent
company’s shares of stock are listed in the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

The Company’s registered office address, which is also its principal place of business,
is located at 7th Floor, Peninsula Court Building; 8735 Paseo-de Roxas Avenue,
Makati City. The registered office address of the parent company is at No. 17,

200 Feet Thoraipakkam — Pallavaram Main Road, Sunnambu Kolathur, Chennai,
IN-600 117, India.

The financial statements of the Company as of and for the fiscal year ended

March 31, 2019 (including the comparative financial staterents as of and for the fiscal
year er_xded March 31, 2018) were authorized for issue by the Company’s Chief
Executive QOfficer on June 21, 2019,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these
financial statefnents ate summarized below and in succeeding pages. These po].lcles
kave been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements.
fa)  Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in.accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS ate adopted by
the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the proncuncements
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and approved by the
Philippine Board of Accountancy.
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The finanicial statemeénts have been prepared usitg the theasurement bases

specified by PFRS for each type of asset, liability, income and expense. The
measurément bases are more fully described in the accountng policies that
foliow..

Presentation of Financial Statements

'The financial statements are presented in accordance with Ph.thppme

Accounting Standard (PAS) 1, Préseniation rnymanaaf Statements. The Commpany
presents all items of income, expenses and other comprehensive income, if any,
in a single statement of comprehensive income:

The Company presents a third statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the preceding period when it applies an accounting policy

.retrospectwely, ormakes 3 rettospecuve testatement or reclassification of items

that has a materizal effect on the information in the statement of financial
position at the beginning of the pteceding period. The related notes to.the third

statement of financial position are not required to be disclosed.

Functional and Presentation Currengy

These financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the Company’s
functional and presentation currency, and all values représent absolute amounts

except-when otherwise indicated.

Items included in the financial statements of the Comipany are measured using

jts functonal currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary

economic envitonment in which the Company operates.

2.2 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

(@)

Effective in Fiscal Year 2079 that are Relovant 1o the Company

In fiscal year 2019, the Company adopted for the first time the following new
standards and interpretation, which are mandatoxily effective for-annual
petiods beginning on of after January 1, 2018:

PFRSY :  Financial Insttuments
PFRS 15 :  Revenue from Contracts with Customets
International Financial ‘
Reporting Interpretations
Committee (TFRIC) 22 : Foreign Curtency Transactions dnd

Advance Censideration
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Further, the Company also adopted for the first ime the Repubiic Act (RA)
No. 11232, The Revised Corporation Code of the Philippines (RCC_)., which tack
effect on March 8, 2019.

Discussed below and in the succeeding pages ate the relevant information

®

about these standards, interpretation and the RCC.

PERS 9 (2014), Financial Instrumenis. This new standard on financial
instruments seplaced PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, and PFRS 9 (2009, 2010 and 2013 versions). This standard
contains, among others, the following:

e three principal classification categories for financial assets based on
the business modél on how an enfity is managing its financial
instruments;

e an expected credit loss (ECL) model in determining impairment of all
financial assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FV'TPL), which generally depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of a financial
asset; and,

e 2 new model on hedge accounting that ptovides significant
improvements principally by aligning hedge accounting more closely
with the risk management activities undertaken by entities when
hedging their firtlancial and non-financial risk expostures.

In accordance with the financial asset classification principle of PFRS 9
(2014), a financial asset is classified and measured at amortized cost if the
asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect the contractual cash flows that represent solely
payments of principal and intetest (SPPI) on the principal outstanding.
Moreover, a financial asset is classifiéd and subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) if it meets the SPPI
criterion and is held'in a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets. All
other financial assets are measired at FVIPL.

In addition, PFRS 9 (2014) allows’ entities to make an irrevocable election:
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity instrument
that is not held for trading in other comprehensive income.

The accounting for embedded derivatives in host contracts that are
financial assets is simplified by removing the requirement to consider
whether or'not they are closely related, and, in most arrangements, does
not tequire separation from the host contract.

For liabilities, the standard refains most of the. PAS 39 requitements
which inchude amortized cost accounting for most financial liabilities,
with bifurcation of embedded derivatives. The amendment also requires
changes in the fair value of an entity’s own-debt instruments caused by
changes in its own credit quality to be recognized in other comprehensive
income rather than in profit or loss.
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The Company applied PFRS 9 using transitional relief allowed by the
standazd. This 2llows the:Company not to restate its comparative prior
period’s financial statements. The adoption of this new accounting:
standard tequited the application of the ECL methodology based on the
stages of impairment assessment for the Company’s contract and other.
receivables. Such application, however, did not result in any significant
adjustment to the Company’s financial statements as of April 1, 2018 and
for the current year.

'The Compaﬂy s new accounting policies relative to the adoption of
PFRS 9 is fully disclosed in Note 2.3 and 2.6, while the related disclosuze
on credit risk is included in Note 16.2.

PERS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers: This standard replaced PAS
18, Revensne, and PAS 11, Constriwtion Contracts, IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty

Programmes, IFRIC 15, Agreement for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18,

Transfers of Assets from Customers, and Standing Interpretations

Committee 31, Revenne — Barter Transactions Invelving Advertising Services.
This new standard--establishes - comprehensive framework for
determining when to recognize revenue and how much revenue to
recognize. The core principle in the said framework is for an entity to
recognize tevenue to depict the transfet of promised goods ot services to
the customet in an amotnt that reflects the-consideration to which the

entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

‘The Company applied PFRS 15 using the modified retrospective approach

which allows the Company not to restate its comparative prior period’s

adjustments.

The Company’s slgmﬁcant revenue streams as of March 31, 2019 include

tendering of services, which is jn scope of PFRS 15. The recognition and

measurement of this revenue stream under PFRS 15 did not significantly
vary from PAS 18. Relative to this, the Company’s adoption of PFRS 15

did not result in any adjustment to the Company’s financial statements as

of April 1, 2018 and for the current year, However, it tesulted in changes.
in the. Company s accounting policies as disclosed in Note 2.9. Tn addition,.
disclosure related to management judgments and estimates is disciosed 1 in

Note3..

IERIC 22, Foreign Curréngy Transactions and Advance Consideration. The
interpretation provides miore detailed guidance on how to account for
transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance consideration
ina forexgn currency. The interpretation states that the date of the
transaction, for the purpose of determining the exchanige rate; is the date
of initial recognition. of the non-monetary asset (arising frotn advance
payment) or liability (ansmg from advance receipt). If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, a date of transaction is established for

‘each payment or receipt. Management has initially assessed that this
interpretation has no material impact on the financial statements of the

Company.
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{iv) RA No. 11232, The Revised Corporation Code of the Philippines. The RCC.
repeals the Batas Pambansa Bilang 68, The Corporation Code of the
Philippines. Among the provisions of the RCC, the following would
impact the Company’s financial statements;

s  the RCC removed the 50a_yea: maximum corporate term. Hence,
stock corporation may have unlimited life unless otherwise provided.
in the articles of incorporation; and

o the RCC removed the subscription requitement of 25% of authorized
capital stock and paid-up capital requitement of 25% of subscribed
‘capital stock. '

"The management deems further that other amendments and new
g
‘provisions contained in the RCC are not relevant to the Company.

()  Effective in Fiscal Year 2019 that is not Relevant 1o the Company
The following amendments and annual improvements to existing standards

are mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on ot ifter January 1,
2018 but are not relevanito the Company’s financial statements:

PAS 40 (Amendments) :  Investment Property — Transfers
_ of Investment Property
PERS 2 (Amendments) :  Share-based Payment —

Classification and Measurement.
of Share-based Payment
_ Transactions ' _
PFRS 4 (Amendments) :  Insurance Contracts — Applying
PFRS 9 with PFRS 4 '
Annual Improvements
PFRS (2014-2016 Cycle)
PAS 28 (Amendments) . Investment in Associates and Joint
Ventures — Measuring an
Associate or Joint Venture at
Fair Value
PFRS 1 (Amendments). :  First-time Adoption of Philippine
' Financial Reporting Standards -
Deletion of Short-term
Exemptions

() Effectivi Subsequent to Fisoal Xear 2019 but not Adapred Early

There are niew PFRS, intérpretation, amendments and annual improvements to
existing standards effective for annual periods subsequent to 2018, which are
adopted by the FRSC. Management will adopt the following relevant
pronouncements in accordance with their transitional provisions; and, unless
otherwise stated, none of these are expected to have significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements.
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PERS 9 (Amendments), Financial Insiraniénts — Prepayment Featnres with
Negative Compensation (effective from January 1, 2019). The amendments
clarify that prepayment features with negative compensation attached to
financial instruments may still qualify under the SPPI test. As such, the
financial assets containing prepayment features with negative
compensation may still be classified at amortized cost or at FVOCL

PERS 16, Lsases {effective from January 1,2019). The new standard will
eventually replace PAS 17, Leases, and its related 1 interpretation JFRIC 4,
Determining whether an Arrangement Contains:a Lease,

For lessees, it requites to account for leases “on-balance sheet” by
recogmzmg a “right-of-use” asset and a lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured as the present value of future lease payments. For
this purpose, lease payments include fixed, non- ~cancellable payments for
lease elements, amounts due under residual value guarantees, certain
types of contingent payments and-amounts due during optional periods
to the extent that extension is reasonably certain. In subsequent peficds,
the “right-of-use” asset is accounted for similarly to a purchased asset
and depreciated oramortized. The lease liability is accounted for
sirailarly to as financial lability using the effective interest method.
However, the new standard provides important reliefs or exemptions for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets. If these exemptions are
used, the accounting is similar to operating lease accounting under

PAS 17 where lease payments ate recognized as expenses on a
straight-line basis over the lease term ot another systematic basis

(if more tepresentative of the pattern of the lessee’s benefit).

The management plans to adopt the modified retrospective application
of PERS 16 where the cumulative effect of initially applying the standatd
will be recognized as an adjustment to the opening balance of Retained
Earnings account at the date of initial application. The Company will
elect fo apply the standard to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applmg PAS 17 and TERIC 4 at the date of initial application.
Management is currently assessing the financial impact of this new
standard on the Company’s financial statements.

IFRIC 23, Unertainty over Income Tax Treatments (effective from January 1,
2019). The interpretation provides clarification on the determination of:
taxable profit, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax
rates when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The cote
principle of the intetpretation requires the Company to consider the:
probablhty of the tax treatment being accepted by the taxation authority.
When it is probable that the tax treatment will be zccepted, the.
determination -of the taxable profit, tax bases, unused tax losses,

unused tax credits, and tax rates shall be on the basis of the accepted

tax treatment. Otherwise, the Company has to use the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on the sutrounding
circumstances, in defetinining the tax accounts identified immediately
above. Management is curtently assessing the impact of this
interpretation on the financial staternents of the Company.
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(i)  Annual Improvements to PERS 2015-2017 Cycle (effective from.
January 1, 2019). Among the improvements, the following
amendments are relevant to the Company but had no material impact.
on-the Company’s financial statements as these amendments merely
clarify existing requirements:

o PFRS 12 (Amendments), Income Taxes — Tax Consequences of
Dividends. The amendments clari'f_y that all income tax consequence
of dividend payrnents should be tecognized in profit or loss.

o PAS 23 (Amendments), Borrowing Costs — Eligibilipy for Capitalization.
The amendments clarify that any specific borrowing which
remains outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready for
its intended purpose, such borrowing will then form part of the
entity’s genetal botrowings when calculating the capitalization rate
for capitalization purposes.

2.3 Financial Assets

Pinancial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractaal
terms of the financial instrument. For purposes of classifying financial assets, an
instrument is considered as an equity instrument if it is non-derivative and meets the
definition of equity for the issuer in accordance with the criteria of PAS 32,

Financial Instruments: Presentation. All other non-derivative financial instruments are

‘treated as debt instruments.

(a)  Classification, Measurement and Reclassification of Financial Assets.in Accordance with
PFRS 9

Financial assets other than these designated and effective 4s hedging
instriments are classified into the following categories: financial assets at
amortized cost, financial assets at FVOCI, and financial assets at FVTPL. The
classification and measurement of financial assets is driven by the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. Cutrently, the only classification felevant
to the Company’s financial assets is assets at amortized cost.

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are tet:

= the asset is held within the Company’s business model whose Gbjective
is to-hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.
{(*hold to collect™); and,

*  the contractual terms of the instrument give rise, on specified dates, to cash
flows that are SPPI on the ptincipal amount cutstanding..

Except for trade receivables that do not contain 2 significant financing
component and are measured at the transaction price in accordance with

PFRS 15, all financial assets meeting these criteria are measured initially ac fair
value plus transaction costs, Theseare 3ubseq_uently meastred at amortized cost.
using the effective interest method, less any impairment in valuae.
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The Company’s financial assets at amottized cost are presenited in the

2019 statement of financial pesition as Cash, Contract and Other Receivables
and Refundable Deposits (the current pottion of which is presented as part of
Other:Current Assets account), '

For purposes of cash flows reporting and ‘presentation, cash comprises accounts:
with original maturities of three months or less. These generally include cash on
hand and demand deposits readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial assets except for those that are subsequently
identified as credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets at amortized:
cost, the effective interest rate is-applied to the et carrying amount of the
financial assets (after deduction of the loss allowance). The interest earned is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss as part of Other Operating Income.

Classification, Measurement and Reclassification of Financial Assets in Accordance with
PAS 39

Financial assets ther than those designated and effective as hedging

Instruments are classified into the following categoties: financial assets at

FVTPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and _
available-for-sale financial assets. Financial assets are assigned to the different
categories by management on initial recognition, depending on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their trade
date. All financial assets that are not classified as at FV TPL are initially

-'Ieco_gnized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Financial
assets cartied at FVTPL ate initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs
related to it are recognized in profit ot loss.

‘The Company’s loans and receivables aze presented in the 2018 statement of

finaniial position as Cash, Contract and Other Receivables and Refundable
Deposits (the curtent portion of which is presented as part of Other Current.
Assets account). Cash is defined as cash on hand and demand deposits with
otiginal maturities of three months or less, readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which ate sabject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments thatare not quoted in an active market. They adse
when the Company provides money, go_ods or services directly to a debtor with
no intention of trading the receivables. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greatet than 12 months after the end of the reporting

period which are classified as non-cutrent assets.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment loss, if any.

All income-and. experises, including impairment losses, relating 1o financial.
assets aré recognized in profit or loss.
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Non-compounding interest and othet cash flows resulting from holding
financial assets are recognized in profit or loss when earned, regardless of how
the related carrying atmount of financial assets. is measured. Interest calculated
using the effective interest method for all categories of financial assets. 15
fecognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets Under PFRS 9

From April 1, 2018, the Company-assesses its ECL on a forward-looking basis
associated with its finaricial asses carried at amortized cost. Recognition of
credit losses is nio longer dependent on the Company’s identification of a credit
loss event. Instead, the Company cansidets a broader range of information in
assessing credit risk and measuring ECL, including past events, current
conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect collectability of the
futute cash flows of the financial assets.

The Company applies the simplified approach in measuring ECL, which uses2
lifetime expected loss allowance fot 2ll contract and other receivables and
contiact assets. These are the expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows,
considering the potential for default at any point during the life of the financial
assets. To calculate the ECL, the Company nses-its historical experience,
external indicators-and forward-looking information to calculate the ECL.
using 2 provision mattix. The Company also assesses impairment of contract
teceivables on a collective basis as they possess. shared credit risk charactetistics,
and have been grouped based on the days past due [See Note 16.2(b)].

The key elethents used in the calculation of ECL are as follows:

*  Probabiliy of defantt — Tt is an estimate of likelthood of default over a given
titne hotizon.

o Loss given defantt — It s an estimate of loss arising in case whete a default
occufs at a given time. Itis based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows of a financial instrament due from a counterparty and those that
the Company would expect to receive, including the realization of any
collateral.

«  Hosposure at defanlt — It represents the gross carrying amount of the financial
instruments subject to the impairment calculation.

Measurerment of the ECL is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of
ctedit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument.

Impairment of Financial Assets Under PAS 39

Impairment loss is provided when there is objective evidence that the Company
will not be able to collect all amounts due to it in‘accordance with the original

terms of the receivables: The amount of the impairment loss.is determined as
the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of

estimated future cash flows (excludmg fature credit losses that have not been

incurred), discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate or
current effective interest rate determined under the contract if the loan has a

variable interest rate.
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The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the
use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in-
gr_oﬁt_ or loss.

If in 4 subsequent petiod, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the:
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurting after the impairment
was recognized (such ds an improvement. in the debtor’s credit rating), the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance

account. The reversal shall not result in a cartying amount of the financial asset

that exceeds what the amottized cost would have been had the impairment not -

‘been recognized at the date of the impaitment is reversed. The amount of the

reversal is reécognized in the profit or loss.
Derecognition of Financial Assets

The financial assets (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part

ofa group of financial assets) are derecognized when the contractial rights to
receive cash flows from the financial instruments expire, of when the financial
assets and all substantial risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantiafly all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Company récognizes its retained iriterest in the asset-and an associated
lability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company tetains substantially-all
the risks and tewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognize the financial asset-and also recognizes a collateralized
'bor_toWng for the proceeds réceived.

Other Assets

Other current assets pertain to othet résources controlled by the Company as a result
of past events. They ate recogpized in the financial statements when it is probab_le;
that the future economic benefits will flow to the Company and the asset has a'cost ‘ot
value that can be measured reliably.

Other recognized assets of similar nature, where future economic benefits are
expected to flow to the Company beyond one year after the end of the reporting
period or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer, are classified as
non-current assets. '

2.5

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at acquisition or construction cost less subsequent
depreciation, amortization anid any impairment in value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and ditectly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for
additions, majot improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for repairs
and maintenance are chaiged to expéenses as incurred.

Depteciation is computed on'a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives: of the
assets. The depreciation and petiod for property and equipment are as follows:

Tr‘a‘ns,'p'ortaﬁon equipment 5years
Office furniture and equipment: 3 years
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Amortization of leasehold improvements is recognized over the estimated useful lives
of improvements or the term of the lease, whichever -_is-shortcr.

If there is an indication that there has been 2 significant change in the useful life or
residual value of an asset, the depreclat{on or amortization of that asset is revised
prospectively to reflect the new expectations.

Fully depreciated and amortized assets ate retained in the accounts untl they are no
longer in use and no further charge. for depreciation and amortization s madé in
respect of those assets.

The residual values, estimated useful lives and method of depreciation and
amortization of property and equipment ate reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is wiitten down immediately to its recoverable amount if
the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount

(see Note 2.13).

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or whén no future
economic benefits are expected-to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the

net disposal proceeds and the catrying amount of the item) is included in profit or

loss in thé year the item is derecognized.
2.6 Financial Liabilities.

Financial Habilities, which include Trade and Other Payables (except taz-related
payables and advances from customers) and Due to Related Parties, are recoghized
when the Company becomes a party to the contractual terms of the instrument. All
interest-related charges incurred on financial liability are recognized as an expense. 1n
profit or loss and presented as pait-of Other Opetating Expenses-account in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities are recognized initially at their fair values and subsequenily
measured 4t amortizeéd cost, using the efféctive interest method for those with
maturities beyond one year, less settlement payments.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due to be settled
within one year or less after the end of reporting period {or in the normal operating
cycle of the business, if longer), or the Company does niot have an unconditional rght
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of repotting:
petiod. Otherwise, these are presented as non-cutrent liabilides.

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the statement of financial position only
when the obligations are extinguished eithier through discharge, cancellation ot
expiration. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial Hability
derecognized and the consideration paid or payable'is recogrized iri profit ot loss.
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2.7 Offertting Financial Instruments.

Financial assets and financial labilities are offset and the fesulting net amount,
considered as a single financial asset or financial liability, is reported in the statement
of financial position when the Company currently has legally enforceable right to

set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The fght of set-off must be
available at the end of the teporting period, that is, it is not contingent on a future
event. It must also be enforceable in the notmal course of business, in the event of
default, and in the event of insolvency or bankruptcy; and must be légaﬂy_ enforceable
for both entity and all counterparties to the financial instruments.

2.8 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions ate recognized when present obligations will probably léad to an outflow
of economic tesoutces and they can be estimated reliably even if the tm:ung or
amount of the outflow may still be uncertain, A present obhgauon arises from the
presence of a legal or constructive obligation that has resulted from past eveats.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the, present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting
period, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the preseat obligation.
Where thete ate a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. When time value of money is material, long-term provisions are discounted
to their present values using 2 pretax rate that reflects market assessments and the
risks specific to the. obhgatlon The incréase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognized as interést expense. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each

.rcpor,ttug_penod and adjusted to reflect the cutrent best estimate.

In those cases‘where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations 1s considered improbable or remote, or the-amount to be provided for
cannot be measured reliably, no hab]hty is recogmzed in the financial statements.

Similatly, possible inflows of economic benefits to the Company that do. not yet meet

the recognition criteria of an asset are consldered contingent assets; hence; these are
not recognized in the financial statements, On the other hand, any reimbursement

that the Company can be. virinally certain to collect from a third party with respect to

the obligation is recognized as a sepatate asset not exceeding the amount of the
:elated_prowsmn

2.9 Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenne arises mainly from rendering of construction setvices.
To determine whethet to tecognize revenue, the Company follows a five-step process:

(1) identifying the contract with 2 customer;

(2) identifying the performance obhgatmn,

(3 deterfmmng the transacton pnce,

(4} -allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations; and,
(5) recognizing revenue when/as performance obligations are satisfied.



-13-

For Step 1 to be achieved, the following five gating criteria must be present:

(i) the parties to the contract have approved the contract either in writing, orally or.
 in accordance with other customaty business practices;
(i) each party’s rights regarding the goods: or services to be transfeired or performed.
can be identified; ' '
(J.u) the payment terms. for the goods or services to be transferred or per‘for-med can
~ be identified;
(iv) the contract has commercial substance (i.e., the fisk, timing or amount’ of the
 futute cash flows is expected to change as a result of the contract); and,
(v) collection of the consideration in exchange of the goods and'services is probable.

Revenue is recognized only when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance

.obligation by transfetring control of the promised goods or services to a customer.
“The transfer of control can occur over time orat a point in tine.

A performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time unless it meets one of the
following criteria, in which case it is satisfied over time:.

) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Company’s performance as the Company petforms;

(i) the Company’s petformance creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; and,

(i) the Company’s performance does not.create an asset with an alternafive use to
the Company and the entity has an enforceable right'to payment for petformance
completed to date.

The Company often entets into transactions involving construction services and other
contracts containing performance obligations with counterparties.

Revenue from copstruction setvices is recognized over time as the service is provided.
The Compaiy uses the petcentage of completion miethod to determine the
approptiate amount to recog_r_ﬁze‘.as-contra_ct revenue in a given period. The stage of
completion is measured by referenice to the contract costs incurred up to the end of

the reporl:ing_-p_er_iod:as a percentage of total estimated costs for each contract. Costs

incurred in the year in connection with future activity on a contract aré excluded from:

‘contract, costs in determining the stage of completion.

The Company presents a contract asset when it transfers control of goods or
petforms setvices before the customer pays- consideration of before payment is due.
A contract asset is the Company’s right to consideration in- exchange for goods or

services that the Company has transferred to a customer.

The Company presents a contract liability when a customer pays the consideration, or
the Company has the right to an amount.of consideration that is unconditional

(i.e., a receivable), before the Company transfers goods or performs services to the
customer. A contract liability is the Company’s obligation to-transfer goods or
setvices to a-customer for which the Company has teceived consideration (oran
amoimt of consideration is due) from the customer.

Contract liability also includes cash received from customers which are applied to
subsequent progress billings for construction contracts'and are presented as Advances

from customer under Trade and Other Payables account in the statement of financial

position (see Note 8).
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'The Company incurs incremental costs in obtaining customer contracts (.e., -biddings'
costs on construction contracts). These costs are expensed when incurred as these
are incurred regardless whether the contract is obtained and is prese’nt'ed as
Advertising under Other Operaﬂng Expenses account in the statement of
comprehensive income.

The Company also incurs costs in fulfilling contracts with customers. These costs ate
divided into: {i) costs that give rise to an asset; and, (i) costs that are expensed as
incurred. When determining the appropriate accouniting treatment for such costs, the
Company first considers any other applicable standards. If other standards preclude
capitalization of 4 particulat cost, then an asset is not recognized under PFRS15. £
other standards are not applicable to contract fulfillment costs, the Company applies
the following critetia, which, if met, result in capitalization:

(@) the costs directly relate to a contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
~ contract;
(i) the costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be tsed in
satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and,
(i) the costs are.expected to be recovered.

1n 2018 and prior periods, the Company recognized revenues based on the provisions
of PAS 11 and PAS 18 which is to the extent that such revenues and the related costs

incurred ot to be incurted can be measured teliably and it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Company. Generally, revenues are recognized
when the customer has accepted the services that have been provided and the risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods has been transferred to the customer. Where
the outcome of the contract cannot.be medsured reliably, revenue is recognized only
to the extent of the expenses recognized that are recoverable.

2.10 Foreign Currency Transactions and Transiation

The accounting records of the Company are maintained in Philippine pesos, its
furictional cuirency. Foreign currency transactions during the period are translated
into the functional currency at exchange trates which approximate those prevailing on
transacton dates.

Foreign cutrency gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions

and from the translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilifies denominated in fore1gn currencies are recognized in profit or loss.

211 Leases — Company as a Lessee

Jeases which do not transfer to-the Company substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the assetare classified as operating leases. Operating lease Ppayments
(net of any incentive received from the lessof) are recognized as expense in profit or
loss ona sttaight—]me basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as repairs and
maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

The Company determines whether an atrangement is, or contains a lease based on the
substance of the arrangetnent. It makes an assessment of whether the fulfillment of
the artangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
artangement conveys a fight to use the asset.
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2.12 Employee Benefits
"The Company’s employee benefits are recognized and measured as follows:
(a)  Post-employment Defined Contribution Plan.

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment plan under which the
Company pays fixed contributions into an independent entity. The Company
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions after
payment of the fixed contribution. The contdbutions recognized in respect of
defined contribution plans are expensed as they fall due. Liabilities and assets
may be recognized if underpayment or prepayment has pceutred and are
included in current liabilities or current assets as they are normally of a
shott-term nature,

(6)  Comipensated Absences

Compensated absences are 'recogniied for the number of paid leave days
(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting period.
They are included in Trade and Other Payables account in the statement of
financial position at the undiscounted amount that the Company expects.to pay
as.a result of the unused entitlement.

2.13 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Compariy’s property and equipment and other non-financial assets ate subject to
impairment testing whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carryifig amount of those assets may ot be tecoverable.

For putrposes of assessifig impairmerit, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are sepatately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As-a result,
assets are tested for impairment either individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

Impairment Joss is recognized in profit or loss for the amount by which the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amounts, which is thie
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in
use, management estimates the expected furare cash flows ﬁr_o_m each cash-generating,
unit and detefmines the suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. ‘The data used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked
to the Commpany’s latest approved budget, adjusted as necessiry to exclude the effects
of asset enhancements. Discount factors a_te.-detemﬁned.individually for each
cash-generating unit and reflect management’s assesstent of respective tisk profiles,
such as market and asset-specific risk factors.

All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss
previously récognized may no longer exist. An impairmient loss is reversed if the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its catrying amount.
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2.14 Borrowing Costs

‘Borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred,

except to the extent that they are capltallzed Botrowing costs that are directly

attributable to-the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (i.e., an

asset that takes a substantial petiod of titne to get ready for its intended 1se or sale)
are capitalized as part of cost of such asset. The capitalization of borrowing costs
commences when expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in

‘progress. Capitalization ceases when substantially all such activities are complete.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings

pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the bortowing costs

eligible for capitalization.
2.15 Imcome Taxes

‘Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of curtent tax and

deferred tax not recognized in other comprehensive income ot directly in equity, if
-any.

Current tax assets or liabilities compgse those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected ot

- unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They are calculated using the tax rates and

tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets ot liabilittes are reécognized as 2
component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is.accounted fot, using the liability method, on temporaty differences at

the end of each reporting petiod between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for finaricial reporting purposes. Under the lability method, with
certain exceptions, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are récognized for all deductible. temporary
differences and the carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the-
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available agiinst which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will be available to allow such
deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax fates that are expected to
applyin the period when the asset Is realized or the liability is settled provided such tax
rates have been enacted or substantively enacted at the €nd of the reporting period.

The carrying amonnt of deferred tax assets is reviewed 4t the end of each reporiing
period and reduced to the extent thatitis probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset-to be utlized.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the mafiner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
teporting perdod, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and lizbilities.
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Most changesin deferred tax assets or lHabilities are recogniz_ed as a component of tax

‘expense in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognized in other comprehensive income ot directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabiliries are offset if the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same entity and the same taxation authority.

2.16 Related Party Relationships and Transactions

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services. ot obligations between
the Company and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in makmg findncial and
opetating decisions. These parties include (a) individuals 'owning, directly or indirectly
thtough one or more intermediares; control or are coritrolled by, or uhder comamon
control with the Ci:)_mpany; and, (b) individuals owning directly or indirectly, an
interest in the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company and
close members of the family of any such individual.

ln considering each possible telated party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship and not merely 6n the legal form.

2.17 Egquity
Capital stock represents the nominal value of shares that have béen issued.

Retained earnings represent all current and prior period results of operatlons as
reported in the profit or loss section of the statement of comprehensive income,

reduced by the amounts of dividends declared, if any.

2.18 Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Company’s
financial position at the end of the reporting pedod (adjusting event) is reflected in
the financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are
disclosed when material to the financial statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The ptepa__raﬁ_on of the Company’s financial statements in accordance with PFRS
fequites management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and related notes. _]udgmcnts and estimates are.
continually evaluated and are based on historical experiénce and other factors,

-mciudmg expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances. Actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.
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3.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has
made the following judgments, apart from those involving estimation; which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial staternents.

{a) Determination of ECL on Contract and Other Receivables (2019)

The Company uses a modified loss rate approach to calculate ECL for contract
and other receivables. The modified loss rate approach is based on the
Company’s historically-observed default rates and considers significant
assumptions about the future economic conditions. The Company’s management
intends to regularly calibrate (ie., on an annual basis) the approach to consider the
historical credit loss expetience with forward-looking information (fe:; forecast.
economie conditions). Details about the ECL on the G_Ompany’s_--éontract and
other receivables are disclosed in Note 16.2(b).

Based on management’s evaluation of information and circumstances affecting
the Company’s Contract and Other Receivables as of March 31,2019, the
Company has not recognized any itnpairtment loss.

(6} Determination of Allowance for Impairment of Contrait and Other Receivables. (2018 )

Adequate amount of allowance for impairment is made and provided for
specific and groups of accounts, where objective evidence of impairment exists.
The Company evaluates the amount. of allowance for impairment based on
available facts and circumstances affecting the collectability of the accounts,
including, but not limited to, the length of the Company’s relationship with.the
counterpatties, the counterparties’ current credit status, average age of accounts,
collection expenence and historical loss experience. The methodology and
assumptions used in estimating futute cash flows are reviewed regularly by the
Company to rediice any. differences between loss estimates and actual loss
expex:lence

The carrying value of contract and other receivables is shown in Note 5. There
‘wete no impairment losses that need to be recognized.for the:fiscal year ended
March 31, 2018.

(¢) Distinction Between Operating and Finance Ledses

The Company has entered into vatious lease agreements as a lessee. Critical
judgment was exercised by management to distinguish the lease agreement as
either an operating or finance lease by looking at the transfer of retention of
significant risk and rewards of ownership of the properties covered by the
agreements. Failute to make the right judgment will result in either
overstatement or understatement of assets and liabilities.. Based on.
managemient’s assessment, the Company’s lease agreements are operating leases.

('aQ Rfm‘gnitz_'arz__ngmmlféaﬂ,f and 'Cam"z}zgemfex

Judgment is exercised by management to d.tst:mgmsh between provisions and
contingencies. Accounting policies on-tecognition and disclosure of provisions
and conmagcnmes ate discussed in Note 2.8 and disclosutes on relevant provisions-
and contingencies are presented int Note 15.
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3.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concem.mg the future, and ther key sources:
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the repomng pericd, that have a significant risk
of causing 2 material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next reporting period:

(2)

()

Revenne Recognition Using the Percentage-of-Completion Method

The Company uses the percentage of completion method in accounting fot its
constructon contract revenues and costs. Relative to the adopﬁon of PFRS 151n
2019, the use of the percentage of completion method requires the' Company to
estimate the stage of completion based on its efforts ot inputs (i.e., actual costs
incurred) to the satisfaction of 4 performance obligation telative to the total
expected construction costs to be incurred on a per project basis, Review of the
benchmarks set by management necessary for the determination of
percentage-of-completion is done regularly. Actual data is being compared to the
telated benchmarks and critical judgmient is exercised to assess the reliability of
the 'p_ercentagc.of completion procedwzes which are currently in place and make.
the necessary revisions-in the light of current progtess. H the proportion of the
percentage of completed projects or the total estimated costs per project differs
from management’s estimates, the amount of profit or loss would have changed.

In 2018, the Company determines percentage of completion based on the stage of
completion based on surveys done by the Company’s engineers and total costs to
be incurred on a per project basis. '

Recognition of Provision for Contract Losiés

Losses on contracts are accrued when the amount of loss can be reasonably
estimated. At the end of each teporting period, the estimated contract costs are
reviewed to determine its reasonableness and accuracy. The actual cost is
analyzed to validate the ongmal estimate. Any difference between the estimate
and the actual cost is 2 change in estimate and is therefore treated prospectively.

Based on management assessmetit, no provision for contract losses should be
recognized in 2019 and 2018.

Estimation of Useful Lives of Property and Equipment’

The Cotnpany estimates the useful lives of property and equipment. based on the
period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated
useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed penodlca]ly and are updated
if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear,
technical of commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the

assets.,

Based on management’s assessment as at March 31, 2019-and 2018, theze is no
change in the estimated useful lives of property. and equipment. ‘Actual results,
however, may vaty due to changes in estimates brought about by changes in
factors mentioned zbove.
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(d) Determiination of Realizable Amonunt of Deferred Tase Asser

The Company reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period
and reduces the cartying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or:patt of the deferred tax
-asset to be utilized. Management assessed that the net deferred tax asset
recognized as at March 31, 2019 and 2018 will be fully utilized in the coming
years. The catrying value of deferred tax assets as of those dates is disclosed in
Note 12.

(¢} Impairment of N on-financial Assots

PFRS requires that an impairment review be pezformed when certain impairment”
indicatots are present. The Company’s-policy on estimating the impairment of
property and equipment and other non-financial assets is discussed.in Note 2.13.
Though management believes that the assumptions used in the estimation of fait
values reflected in the financial staternents are appropriate and reasonable,
significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the assessment of
recoverable values and any resulting impairment loss could have a material
adverse effect on the results of operations.

There were no impairment losses recognized on the Company’s non-financial
assets for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018 based on management’s
evaluation,

4, CASH

This account is composed of the fo]lowfig’g:

2019 2018
Cash in banks P 9,692,002 P 33,777,689
Cash on hand 315,794 173119

Cash in banks generally earn interest based on daily bank deposit rates (see Note 11).
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5. 'CONTRACT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

This account is composed of the --fqﬂowing:_

Current: _
-Constructon contract receivables:
Unbilled
Billed.

Advances to suppliers
Others

Nog-current -
Constiuction contract receivables —
Retention

2019 2018
P1,291,406,205 P 977,751,786
87,941,209 72,205,241
1,379,347,414 1,049,957,027
3,965,905 2,244,522
6,194,784 4,435,991
1,389,508,103 1,056,637,540
11,156,723 11,156,723

Construction contract receivables pertain to receivables from customers for

contract revenue recognized over the period of the contract based on the
petcentage-of-completion. Portion of this remain unbilled due to pending required
documentations as set out in the agreements. These documents inclade signed
contract and approved unit cost estimate for variation order, testing certificates and
mianuals. The telated contract revenues were pre‘_sented in the statements of
comprehensive income as Contract Revenues amounting to P1.1 billion and

P934.0 million for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
Contract costs incutred and recognized telated to contracts in progress for the fiscal
years ended March 31; 2019 and 2018 amounted to P952.3 million and P803.8 million,

respectively (see Note 10.2).

As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, retention receivables both amounted to _
P11.2 million. Retention receivables pertain to payments for receivables withheld by

the customer until the completion of the project.

Other recelvables -'hldude_salary loans provided by the Company to its employees..

All of the Company’s: contract and other receivables have been zeviewed for
indications of impairment, Based on management’s éviluation, no impairment losses
on contract and other receivables need to 'be'reco_gnized as of March 31, 2018.

As of March 31,20 1‘9-;_Company’ s contract and other receivables were assessed for
any ECL using the provisional matrix determined by the management. Based on the
matrix, none of the receivables are deemed to be'impaired as of March 31, 2019.
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‘The-composition of this account is shown below.

Notes 2019 2018
Creditable withholding tax P 19,161,680 P 9,734,463
Advances for liquidation 18,233,203 11,116,307
Prepaid taxes 13,343,372 13,772,692
Deferred VAT receivable 9,925,834 5,899,069
Prepaid insurance 8,478,440 5,903,812
Input VAT 18(b) 6,399,350 31,829,899
Prepaid rent 2,031,612 1,230,515
Refunidable deposits 15.1 1,389,509 390,300

B __78963.000 P 79877057

Advarices for liquidation pertain to advances to employees for. the daily expenditures
of the Company. Advances for liquidation also irclude custom duties paid in advance
‘atnounting to P6.7 million and P6.1 million in 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Prepaid insutance pertains to insurance policies covering the Company’s petformance
‘bonds related to its ongeing projects. In 2019, certain insurance policies expired
which were renewed by the Company in the same period, The related prepaid.
insurance were fully amortized in 2019. '

7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation and amortization of
propetty arnd equipment at the beginning and end of 2019 and 2018 are shown below.

Tran_spott_ation Office Furniture Leasehold

Equipment .  and Equipment. Improvements ___ Total

Cost P 10,791,327 P 12,881,847 P 11493402 P 35,166,576
Accumulated depreciation ' _

and amortzation { 5979,233) ( 9,710,250 ( 10.271,148) ( 25,960,631 )
‘Balance at March 31, 2019, '

net of accumiulated

depreciation. . : . - o

and amortization P__4812004a P__ 3171507 E 1,222,254 E 2,205,245
Cost P 10270792 P 9,846,718 P 11,405,402, P 31,522,912
Accumulated depreciation _

and amartzaton {. 4,357,948} ( 8035000} ( 6,664,542) ( 19,057,490}
Balanice at March 31, 2018, '

net of accumulated

depreciation _ _ _ _ _ _ _

and amortization P 5912844 P 1,811,718 2 4740860 P ... 12465422
Cost P 8,118,112 P 9_;406,'_?’5’4 . P 09,919,517 P 27,444 383

Accumulated depreciation _

‘and amortization { 2,621,169} ¢ 6,045,603} 4,.720,778) ( 13,387,530)
Balance at Apiil 1, 2017,

net of accumulated

depreciation _ _ ) _ _

and amottization P 5496943 P 3361151 B 5198739 P 14,056,833




_23-

A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of property and equipment at the beginning
and end of fiscal years 2019 and 2018 is shown below.

Trausportaton  Office Fumiture  Leaschold _
~Equipment = and.Equipment Improvements . Total

Balance at Apsil 1, 2018

net of accumulated

depreciation and

amortization. P 3,912,844 P 1,811,718 P 4,740,860 P 12,465,422
Additons 520,536 :3,035,129 88,000 3,643,665
Depreciation and '

-amortization charges

for the year ( 1,621286) ( 1,675,250) ( 3,606,606) (. 6.903,142)

‘Balance at March 31, 2019,
net of accumulated
depteciation

and amortzZation 24812094 P 3171597 P 1,222.254 P 9,705,945

Balance at April 1, 2017

nét of accamulated

depreciation and

amortization. P 5496943 P 3361151 P 5198739 P 14,056,833
Additions 2,152,679 439,964 1,485,885 4,078,528
Depreciation and.

-amortization charges

for the year ( 1.736,778) { 1,989.397) ( 1,943,764 % ( 3.669.939)

Balance at March 31, 2018,
net'of 4écumulated
depreciation _ o _
‘and amortization P 5912844 P 1,811,718 P 4740860 P 12,465,422

Depze'éiatiOn and amortization is presented under Other Operating Expenses account in the
statements of comprehensive income (see Note 10).

Cost of fully depreciated assets still in use as of 2019 and 2018 amount to P13.0 mﬂhon and
P7.6.million, respectively.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

‘This account consists of:

2019 2018
Trade payables P 542,932,977 P 561,623,587
Accrued expenses 524,922,082 314,238,185
Withholding tax payable 4,348,489 3,511,663
Advances from customers 945,603 2,353,638
Others 2,524,547 117,895
P1,075,673,698 P__881,844968

Advances from customers pertain to advance payments for ongoing projects, which
are subsequently applied to the billings made by the Company.
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NOTES PAYABLE

Balance at the beginning of the year
Net availments during the year
Settlements made

OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURE

10.1  Operating Expense by Nature

This account includes the following as of March 31, 2019 and 2018.

2019 2018
P 49,508,844 P -
83,177,691 49,008,844
(__12,500,060) -

B 120,586,535 E._.49.908844

For the current and ptior years, the Company obtained unsecuted, short-term
interest—bearing_ loans from local banks. These loans were: subject to annual interest
rates ranging from 8.00%.to 9.70% and 7.00% for the pefiods ended March 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively, and the procéeds from which were used for working capital
requirements. ' ”

Interest expense incurred on these loans for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2019
and 2018 amourited to P8.13 million and P0.98 million, respectively, and is presented
as Interest expense under Other Operating Expeanses accountin the statements of
comptehensive income (see Note 10). There was no unpaid interest as of March 31,
2019.

The details of operating eXpenses by natire are shown below:

2019 2018

Notes
Material cost 131
Chutside services 13.1,13.2
Salaries and wages 13.3
Transportation, travel and

representation

Insurance
Rentals 15.1
Preight charges
Interest expense 9
Depreciation and amortization. 7
Ulities _
Taxes and licenses. 18(f})

Bank charges

Processing fees-

Professional fees

Repairs and maintenance
Commissions.

Advertising

Foreign currency losses - net
Miscellaneous

P 579,402,012 P 270,727,189

297,915,526 454,405,703
72,095,327 60,918,484
19,656,244 11,420,722
16,879,080 15,800,519
16,793,602 11,638,612

9,250,767 7,955,829
8,125,722 984,710
6,903,142 5,669,939
5,304,717 4,809,409
5,200,778 4 674,075
3,420,870 7,505,081
3,371,259 14,618,527
2,967,677 2,891,565
2,512,946 2,996,321
1,626,912 2,899,644
1,105,879 719,714
- 9,804,754
14,610,501 5.671.138
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The operating expenses are classified in the statements of 'compj_:é.hensive mcome as
follows: '

Note 2019 2018
Contract costs 102 P 952,294,880. P 803,788,654
Other opetating expenses 114,848 081 92,323,281

PL067142961 P 896111935

10.2 Contract Costs

“The details of contract costs are shown below.

Notes 2019 . 2018
Material cost 13.1 P 579,402,012 P 270,727,189
Outside services 13.1 272,720,752 437,682,618
Salaties and wages 39,673,941 30,192,911
Insutance 16,480,748 15,380,124
Transportation; travel and. _ _ _
representation 9,695,398 5,497,067
Freight charges 9,250,767 7,955,829
Rentals 9,163,768 6,726,024
Processing fees 3,371,259 14,618,527
Bank charges 2,214,797 7,286,273
Utilities 1,665,848 1,151,167
Comuitssions 1,626,912 2,899,644
Repairs and maintenance 825,894 907,995,
Miscellaneous - 6,202,784 2.763.286
10.1 P_952294880 P__803.788.654

Processing fees, freight charges and bank charges are expenses directly telated to the:
Company’s importations.

Comumissions pertains to payments made by the Company to consultants that act as

intermediary between the Company and its customers computed as percentage of

collectons.

Transportaticn, travel and representation expense include expenses incurred by the
Company’s consultants during the design phase of the project.

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

The details of other operating income are shown below.

Note 2019 2018
Foreign currency gain - net P 1,544,703 P -
Interest income 4 33,839 139,634
Others. 286,991 71,429

P__ 1865533 P 211063
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TAXES

The components of tax expense as reported in the statements of comprehensive.
mcome ate as follows:

2019 2018
Current tax expense:
Minitmuim corporate fncome
tax (MCIT) at 2% P 2,774,020 P -
Final tax at 20% 6,768 27,927
Regular corporate income -
tax rate (RCIT) at 30% - 14,940,995
2,780,788 14,968,922
Application-of MCIT _ - (. 1,561,974y
2,780,788 13,406,948

Deferred tax expense (income)
relating to origination and
reversal of temporaty difference 5,109.561 (

P 7,890349 P__ 11467372

"The reconciliation of tax on pretax profit computed at the applicable statutory fates to
tax expense reported in the statements of comprehensive income is as follows:

1,939,576)

2019 2018
Tax on pretax profit at 30% P 7,629436 P 114277331
Adjustments for:
Non-deductible expense 264,297 54,004
Income subjected to lower tax rates ( 3.384) (| 13,963)

P___7.890349 P_ 11467372

The net deferred tax assets (liabilities) relate to the following as of March 31:

Tax expense.

Statements of
Financial Position Comprehensive Income
2019 _ 2018 2019 2018
Deferred tax assets:
MCIT P1,037,299 P (P 1,037,299) P 1,561,974

Unrealized foreign exchange loss. - 2,465,585 - { 2,465,385)
Net operating loss.carry over _
MNOLCO) - - , - . 1,785,965
1,037,299 2465585 ( 1,037,299) 882,354
Deferred tax lisbility -
Unrealized foreign exchange gain (3,681,275} 6,146,860 (_ 2,821:930}

Deferred tax assets (liability) - net

Deferred tax expense (incomie)

F_5109.561 (2_1939.576)
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The Company is subject to MCIT, which is -comp_u_ted at 2% of gross income net of
allowable dednctions, as defined under the tax regulations, or RCIT, whichever is
higher. In 2019, the Company is subject to MCIT as it is higher than RCIT during the
year. In 2018, the Company is subject to RCIT and its pdor year’s NOLCO and
excess MCIT over RCIT were utilized in the same year.

For the fiscal years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, the 'Company opted to claim
itetnized deductions fot tax purposes. '

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s related patties include its parent.company, entities under common
ownetship and key managetrent personnel. The suinmary of the Company’s
outstanding balances and significant transactions with its related parties as of and for
the fiscal years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

2019 2018
Amount of  Ouistanding  Amountof — Ouzstanding
__Note__ Transaction_ Balance Transaction Balance
Parent Company:
Technical and consultancy _ ) _ _ o
services 131 P 22,668,316 (P 31,020,061) P 16,381,472 (P 16,781,468)
Purchases of construction _ o _ _ ' '
. materials 131 17,254,431 ( 60,595,718) 32208754 ( 61,056,740)
Reimbursements 131 3,901,378 (. 5,789,754} 5114907 {  4,535,531)
Under Common Ownership — _ _
Research and development 132 2,685,701 ( 3,029,851) 1957889 ( 475,726)
Eey Management Personnel —
Key management compensation 13.3 37,744,233 - 34,722,827 -

The outstanding payables (net of overpaymerits) from these transactions, shown as
Due to Related _Parﬁes. in the statements of -E.n_ﬁnci_al position, amounted to

P100.4 million and P82.9 million as of March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The
outstanding liabilies to related parties are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and

genetally payable in cash upon demand.

13.1 Transactions with Parent Company

The parent company renders technical and consultancy services to the Company.
The costs recognized from this transaction for the fiscal years ended Mazch 31,2019
and 2018 amounted to P22.7 million and P16.4 million, respectively. These ate
presented as part of Qutside services under Contract Costs in the statements of
comprehensive income (see Note 10.2). The Company putchases constrzction.
materials from its-parent company for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018
amounting to P17.3 million and P32.2 million, respectively. These are presented as
part of Material cost under Contract Costsin the statéments of comprehensive
income (see Note 10.2). In addition, the Company incurred information technology
expenses for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2019.and 2018 amounting to

P3.9 million and P5.1 million, respectively, which was initially paid by the pazent
company and yet to be reimbursed as of March 31,2019 and 2018, respectively.
These are presented as patt of Qutside services under Other Operating Expenées in
the statements of comprehensive income. (see Note 10.1).
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13.2 Tramsactions with Related Parties Under Common Ownership

VA Tech Wabag GMBH, Austria, a related party under common ownership, incurred
reseéarch and development costs on behalf of the Company amounting to P2.7 million
and P2.0 million for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
These are presented as part of Qutside services under Other-Operating Expenses in
the statements of comprehensive income (see Note 10.1).

13.3 Key Management Personnel Compensation.

The total remuneration (including salaries and be_neﬁ_ts_) of the. Company’s managers
and other members of key management amounted to P37.7 millien and P34.7 million
for the fiscal years 2019 and 2018, respecnvely These are presented as part of Salaries
and wages under Other Operating Expenses in the statements of comprehensive
income (see Note 10.1).

4.1 Capital Stock

The Company has 15,000,000 shares of anthorized capital stock, :.of'whit;h-
8,570,200 shares ate issued and outstanding, with a par value of P1 per share, as of
March 31, 2019 and 2018,

As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company has enly one stockholder owning
100 or more shates of the Company’s capital stock.

14,2 Retdained Earmings

On Apnl 27, 2018, the Company’s Board of Directors (BOD) approved the reverse of
appropation of retained earnings amounting to P10.0 million for the Pututan Plant
Upgrade Project. On the same date, the BOD authorized the appropriation of

P50.0 million for rehabilitition, retrofitting and process improvement of La Mesa
Watetr Treatment Plant 2. As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, the total appropriated
retained earnings of the Company amounted to P180.0 million and P140.0 miltion,
respectively.

As of March 31, 2019, the Company’s unrestricted retained earnings exceeded its
qud—m cap1tal The Company plans to. appropnate. its excess unrestricted retamed
earnings for working capital purposes and projects to be started in the next fiscal yeat.

14.3 Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Procediires

The Company 5 capmtl management objectives are to ensure the Company’s ability to-
continue as a going concern and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by
pticing services commensurate with the level of risk.
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The Company monitors capital on the basis of the ca:rymg amount of equity as
presented in the statements of financial position. Capital for the reporting periods
under review is summarized below.

2019 2018
Total liabilities P1,299,339,593  P1,014,623,277
Total equity 203,089,207 185,548,103
Debt-to-equity ratio 640 : 1.00 5.47:1.00

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
15.1 Operating Lease — Company as Lessee

"The Company s a lessee under various operating leases covering its office space and
rooms:for its officers and employees. In October 2015, the Company entered into an
operating lease agreement with a term of four years for its office. épate with renewal
options and 5% annual escalation rate. In fiscal years 2019 and 2018, the Company
also entered into various leases of rooms with terms of one year to two yeats.

The total rentals from these operating leases for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2019
and 2018 amounted to P7.6 million and P4.9 million, respechvely,, and are presented
as Rentals unider Other Operating Expenses account in the statements of’
comptehensive income (see Note 10.1). In addition, the required security deposits
-amounting to P5.0 million ad P4.0 million-as of Match 31, 2019 and 2018,
tespectively, is presented as Refundable Deposits (p:esented under Non-Curtent
Assets section and as part of Other Current Assets account) ini the statements of
financial position (see Note 6). The future minimum rentals payable under this.
opetating lease are 4s follows as of March 31:

2019 2018
Within one year P 2,288,010 P 4,566,01_0
More than one year - 1.944 810

P 2288010 P__ 6510820

15.2 Unused Line of Credit

The Company has unused lines of credit amountng to P27.7 million and
US$1.0 million as of March 31, 2019 and P86.9 million and US$0.6 - million as of
March 31, 2018 with various commercial banks.

15.3 Others

There dre other commitments and contingencies ariSmg from the Company’s
opetations. As of March 31, 2019, tmanagement is of the opinion that losses, if any,
from thése commitments and contingencies will not have material effects on the
Company’s financial statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES.

"The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risks which result from both its

operating and investing activities. The Company s risk management is coordinated
with its parent company, in close cooperation with the BOD, and focuses on actively
securing the Company’s short to medium-term cash flows by minimizing the
exposute to financial risks.

‘The Company does not-engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative
‘purposes nor does it write options. The most significant finanicial risks to which the

Company-is exposed to ate described below and in the succeeding pages.
16.1 Market Risk

The Company is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and
specifically to foreign currency tisk and interest rate tisk which result from both its
operating and investing activities.

(a) Foreign Carrency Risk

.Exposures to currency exchange rates atise from trade a_nd_qtht_ar paya_ble_s and
~due to related parties which aze primatily denominated in U.S. dollar, and Euro:
The.Company also holds U.S. dollar-denominated cash.

To mitigate the Company’s exposure to foreigh currency risk, non-Philippine
peso cash flows ate regularly monitored. Foreign currency derniominated Hnancial
assets-and financial Habilities in U.S, dollars and Euro translated into Philippine
pesos at the respective closing rates-ate as follows:

U.5. Dollay Euro

March 31, 2019

Financial assets P 32343352 P L

Financial liabilities (___ 45713203) (___ 21555690)

Net exposure P ___6630,089 (B__21,555.690)
March 31, 201 | N

Fmanc:lal assets P 20055074 P -

Finandial liabilities ( 45.22.4.069.-)_ { 37,196,822)

Net exposure (®__25168995) (P__37,196,822)

The sensmvn'y of the net results in regards to.the Company’s financial assets and
financial liabilities and peso exchange rate assumes 2 +/-11. 19% and +/-11.86%
change for U.S. dollar — Philippine peso while /- 23: 07% and +/- 27.52% for
Euro — Philippire peso in 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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‘The 'fo].l'owing table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit.or loss before tax and
equity with respect to changes in the valué of Philippine peso against foreign
currencies. The percentage changes have been determined based on the average
market volatility in exchange rates; using standard deviation, in the previous '
12 monthsat 2 99% confidence level.

2019 ) 2018
Reasonably Effect in Reasénably Effectin
possfblc change profit beforc Effect in possible-change  profit before. Efféctin
in.rate A eguity . intate tax equity
USD-Php 1.19% P 741904 P 519333 11.86% (P 2085043)(P  2,089,530)
Euro-Php 23.07% 4,972,898 3,481,029 21.52% 10,236,563 7,165,596

“The effect would be the reverse if the Philippine peso would appreciate against
the othet curtencies.

Exposures to foreign currency exchange rates vaty during the year depending on
the volunie of overseas transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis is consideted to
be representative of the Company’s currency. risk.

(5) Intereir Rate Risk

The Company has limited exposuze to changes in market interest rates through
its cash and cash equivalents, which ate mostly short-term and are subjectto
vatiable interest tates. These financial instruments have historicaily shown small-
ot measured changes in interest rates. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities have fixed rates.

16.2 Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty may fail to dischidrgeé an obligation to the
Company. The Company is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments

arsing from granting credits to customers and placing deposits with banks.

The Company contituously: monitors defaults of counterparties, identified either
individually ot by group, and incorporate this information into its credit risk controls.

Where available at 2 reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or teports on

countetparties are obtained and used. The Company’s policy is to deal only with
‘creditworthy counterparties. '

The maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the total carrying atount of
the financial assets as showir on the statements of financial position (or in the detailed
analysis provided in the notes to financial statements), a5 summarized below.

Notes 2019 2018
Cash 4 P 10,007,796 P 33,950,808
Contract and _ _
other receivables 5 1,396,698,921 1,065,549,741
Refundable deposits 6,15.1 4,976,742 4.008.545.

P1,411,683,459 P 1.103,509.094

‘None of the financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements,
except for cash and cash eqmvalents as desctibed in the succeeding page.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The credit Hsk for cash and cash equ.iva;ler_lts-is considered negligible, since the
counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external crédit ratings.
Included in the cash and cash equivalents are cash in banks and short-term
placements which are insured by the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation
up to a maximum coverage of P0.5 million for every depositor per banking
institetion.

Contract and Othér Receivables and 'Reﬁndabfe. Deposits

The Company applies the PFRS 9 sﬁi}pﬁﬁed apptoach in measuring ECL which
uses 2 lifetime expected loss allowance for all contract and other receivables and
refundable deposits.

To measure the ECL, these financial assets have been gréuped based on shared
credit risk characteristics. The other receivables and refundable deposits have
substantially the same risk charactesistics as the trade receivables. The Company
has therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a
reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the other assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period
of 36 months prior to March 31, 2019 or April 1, 2018, respectively, and the-
cortesponding historical credit losses experienced within such pedod. The.
histotical loss rates-are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on mactoeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customets to
settle the receivables. The Company has identified the inflation rate in the
Philippines to be the most televant factot, and accordingly adjusts the historical
loss rates based on expected: changes in this factor. However, the application of
ECL methodology did not result in a1y significant adjustment on the Company’s
financial statements as.of April 1,2018 and for the current yeat.

All of the contract and other receivables and refundable deposits are ot
impaired as at the end of the reporting period and are of good credit quality.

Contract receivables that are past due but not impaired are-as follows:

46 to 90 days past due P 3,534,636

91 to 180 days past due 15,251,588

Over 180 days past.due 151,746,868
16.3 Liquidity Risk

The: Company manages its llqu.ldlry needs by carefully momtormg scheduled debt

day—to day business. Iaqmdlty needs are momtored 1n various titne. bands ona
day-to-day and week-to-week basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30-day

projection. ‘Long-term liquidity needs for a six-month and one-year period are
Jdentified monthly.
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The Company maintains cash to meet its liquidity requirements for up to 60-day
petiod. Funding for long-term liquidity needs is additionally secuted from related

—_ parties.
- As at March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company’s financial liabilities have contractual
maturities within 12 months as shown below.
_ Notes 2019 _ 2018
- ‘Trade and other payables- 8 Pi,_070,379_,-606 P 875,979,667
' Notes payable 9 120,586,535 49,_-'_90.8,844
— Due to related parties 13 100,435,384 82,869,465
— P1.291.401,525 P 1,008757.976
— These contractual matutities reflect the gross cash flows, which may differ from the.

carrying values of the Habilities at the end of the repotting period.

- 17. CATEGORIES AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

A7.1 Fair Value Hierarchy

In accordance with PERS 13 Fair Value Measurement, the fair value of finaneial assets and

financial lizbilities and non-financial assets which are measured at faif value ona

e recurring or nion-recurring basis and those assets and Habilities not measured at fair
value but for which fair value is disclosed in accordance with other relevant PFRS, are

- categotized into three levels based on the significance of inputs used to measure the fair

value. The fair valie hierarchy levels is presented in the succeeding page.

o Level it quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that an entity can access at the measurement date;

¢ Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that ate
observable for the asset or lizbility, either directly (ie., as prices) or mchxectly
_____ (e, derived from prices); and,
e o Level 3t inputs for the asset or Liability that are not based on obsezvable
market data (unobservable inputs).

The lével within which the asset or liability is classified is determined based on the
lowest level of significant -inp_ut to the fair value measurement.

For purposes of determining the market value at Level 1, a market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available froman exchange, dealer, brokes,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
- and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

— When the Company uses valuation technique, it maximizes the use of observahle.
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine the fair value of an
Instrurnent are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. Otherwise, it is
included in Level 3.



-34-

The Company has no financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value or
that afe not carried at fair value but are fequired to be disclosed as at March 31, 2019
and 2018. Nevertheless, if its financial instruments are-ptesented in the fair value
hierasrchy, only cash can be considered Level 1; all the rest are considered Level 3.

17.2 -Cartying Amounts and Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The carrying amounts and fair values of the categories of financial assets and financial
Labilities presented in the statements of financial position are shown below.

2019 i 2018
Financial Asscrs
-At amortized cast o o
Cash 4 P 10,007,796 P 10,007,796 P 33,950,808 P 33,950,808
Contractand-other )
receivables 5 1,356,698,921 1,396,698,921 1,065,549, 741 1,065,549,741
Refundable deposits 6, 15,1 4,976,242 4,976,742 4,008,545 4,008,545
Financial Lizbilities
Atamomized cost .
Tiade and other payables 8 P 1,070,379,606 P 1070379,606 P  B75979.667 P 875,979,467
Notes payable g . 120,586,535 120,586,535 49,908,844 49,908,844
Due to related parties 13 100,435,384 ____ 100,435,384 BZ.M 82869465

See Note 2.3 and 2.6 for a description of the accountiag policies for each category of
financial instrument, including the determination of fair values. A descnptlon of the
‘Company’s risk management objectives and policies for financial instrument is
provided in Note 16.

17.3 OffBetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The fo]lomg financial assets and financial liabilities - with net amounts presented in
the statements of financial position are subject to offsetting and similar agreements:

Gross Amount. Amount Net Amount
2019:
Financial agsets —
Contract and other receivables. P1,398.010.665 P 1,311,744 P1,396,698.921
Financial labilities —
Tride and othet payables B1.069.067,862 P__ 1,311,744 P 1,067,756,118
2018
'Financial assets —
Contract and other recéivables. B2172207374 P 106,657,633 P.1,065549 741
-Financial liabilities —

Trade and other payables P_982.637.300 P_106657.633 P 875979667
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For financial assets and financial liabilities on the foregoing subject similar
arrangements, each agreement between the Company and counterparties allows for
net settlement of the relevant financial assets and financial liabilities when both elect:
to settle on a net basis. In the absence of such an election, financial assets and
financial liabilities will be settled on a gross basis; however, each party to the similar
agreement will have the option to settle all such amounts on a net basis in the event of
default of the other party and upon the instruction of the parent company. There ate
no other potential financial assets and financial liabilities which can be set off as.of
March 31, 2019 and 2018,

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF
INTERNAL REVENUE

Following is the supplementary information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or
accrued during the taxable year which is required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue
under its existing Revenue Regulation No. 15-2010.to be disclosed 4s past- of the:
notes to financial statements. This supplementary information is not a required
disclosure under PFRS.

(a) Cutput VAT

In fiscal year 2019, the Company declared output VAT amounting to
P88,948,813 arising from rendering of services. The tax base amounting to
P741,240,110 is incleded as. patt of Contract Revenues in the 2019 statement of
comprehensive income: The tax base for contract revenues 1s based on the
Company’s gross recei_pts for fiscal year 2019; hence, this maynot be the same as
the amount recopnized in the 2019 statement of comprehensive income.

"There is no outstanding eutput VAT payable as of March 31, 2019. |
(6} Inpue VAT

The movements in input VAT in 2019 are summarized below.

Balance at beginning of period P 31,829,899
Setvices lodged under cost of services 45,703,450
Importation of goods other than capital goods 21,290,006
Domestic purchases of goods other

than capital goods ' 6,056,984
Capital goods 910,091
Applied against output VAT ( 99.391.680)
Balance at end of peried P 6399350

‘The balance of Input VAT as of March 31, 2019 is presented as part of Other
Current Assets account in the 2019 statement of finaticial position (see Note 6).

(¢} Taxes on Importation
In fiscal year 2019, the total landed cost of the Company’s importaticns: for use

in business amounted to P102.5 million. This includes customs duties and tariff
fees totaling. P2,204,663.
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Exccise Tax

The Company did not have-any transactions in fiscal year 2019, which are subject

‘1o excise tax.

Dacumentary Stamp Taxe (DST).

The Company paid DST amounting to P108,395, which pertains to contract of

lease entered during the fiscal year 2018 [see Note 18(f)].

Taxes and Licenses

The details of taxes and licenses in fiscal year 2019 are as follows:

Notes

Business permits P 5,076,792
DST ' 18(e) 108,395
Community tax certificate. 10,500
Barangay clearance 2,200
BIR registration fee 500
Others 2391

10.1 B__ 5200778

Withholding Taxes

“The details of total wfthholding taxes for the:fiscal year 2019 are shown below.

Expanded P 3,935,875
Compensation and employee benefits _ 9.732.651

The Company does ot have any income payments subject to final withholding
tax for the fiscal year 2019.

Defictency Tax Assessments and Tax Cases

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2019, the Company paid penalties amounting

to P730,555 for deficiency taxes on expanded withholding and in¢ome taxes

related to taxable period 2016 which is presented as part of Miscellanecus undet

Other Operating Expenses (see Note 10). The Company does not have tax cases
outstanding or pending in courts or bodies outside of the BIR in any of the open
taxable years.
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Report of Independent Auditors g
to Accompany Supplementary LemERS
Information Required by the

Securities and Exchange

Commission Filed Separately from

the Basic Financial Statements

The Board of Directors

VA Tech Wabag (Philippines) Inc.

(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of VA Tech Wabag Limited)
7th Floor, Peninsula Court Building

8735 Paseo de Roxas Avenue, Makati City

We have audited, in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements
of VA Tech Wabag (Philippines) Inc. (the Company) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2019,
on which we have rendered our report dated June 21, 2019. Our audit was made for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
following applicable supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis
in compliance with the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, as amended,
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards:

a. Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2018; and,

b. Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations Adopted by
the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Financial Reporting Standards
Council as at March 31, 2018.

Certified Public Accountants grantthornton.com.ph
Punongbayan & Araullo [P&A) is the Philippine member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd

Offices in Cavite, Cebu, Davae
BOA/PRC Cert of Reg. No. 0002
SEC Accreditation Ne. 0002-FR-5
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Such supplementary information is the responsibility of management. The supplementary
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the basic statements taken as a whole.

PUNONGBAYAN

CPA Reg. No. 0111202
TIN 212-755-957
PTR No. 7333685, January 3, 2019, Makati City
SEC Group A Accreditation
Firm - No. 0002-FR-5 (until Mar. 26, 2021)
BIR AN 08-002511-038-2018 (until Nov. 26, 2021)
Firm's BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Jul. 24, 2021)

June 21, 2019

Certified Public Accountants
Punengbayan & Araullo (PBA] is the Philippine member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd
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VATECH WAB_AG (PHILIPPIN ES_)_INC. _
(A Wholly Owned _Subs;_riizhgg'-of VA Teck Wabag Limited)
7th Floor, Peninsula Court Buildinyg, 8735 Paseo de Roxas Avenue, Makat City

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

March 31, 2019

Unappsopriated Retained Earnings at Beginning of Year

“Prior Years’ Qutstanding Reconciling Items, net of tax

Deeferred tax income

Unappropriated Retained Earnings Available for
Dividend Declaration at-ngiz:'l_}ﬁng of Year, as Adjusted

Appropriaton during the Year
Reversal of appropriation during the year
Net Profit Realized during the Year

Net profit per andited financial statements

Non-actual/unrealized income, net of tax
Deferred tax income

UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE
FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION AT END OF YEAR

Supplemental informadon —

36,977,903

2,465,585 )

17,541,104

1,037,299

34,512,318
50,000,000 )

10,000,000

16,503,805

11,016,123

- As of March 31, 2019, the Company’s unrestricted retained earnings exceeded its paid-in capital. The Company -
plans to'appropdate its excess unrestdcted retdined eamings for working capital purposes and projects to. be starred

in the next fiscal year,



VA TECH WABAG (FHILIPPINES) INC.
(4 Wiolly Owned Subsidiacy of VA Tech Wabag Limitcd)

Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Stasdards and Interpretations

Adopted by the Securitics and Exchange Commission and the
Financial Reporting Standards Council as of March 31, 2019

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Adopied

Not
Adapied

Not.
Applicable

Framework for the Préparation and Presentation of Financial Statements

Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and Qualitative Characteristics

Practice Statement Management Commentary

Phifippine Finencial Reportine Stiadards (PFRS}

PERS1
(Beviacd)

First-time Adopton of Philippine Financial Reporting Stindards;

Amendments. to PERS 1: Addidonal Exemptions for _Fi:'st-.timc.ﬁdop_tgrs

Amendments to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosues for
Eirst-time-Adopters: '

Amendmients 1o PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and Remeval of Fixed Date for
First-time #dopters

Ameéridments to PFRS 1n.Govemment Loans

NS« Is]s

PFRS 2

Share-based Payment

Amendménts o PFRS 2: Vesting Condidons and Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-seitled Share-based Payment Transactions.

Amendments to PERS 2 Classification and Measurernent of Share-based Payment
Transactions

PFRS 3
(Revised)

Busiiiess Combinations-

PFRE 4

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to'PAS 30 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts

{Amendments to PFRS 4 Applying PFRE 9, ﬁm&gfb:.fm:gﬁ., with PERS 4, Imsuranie

Contpati -

PFRS5

Non:current. Assets Hald for $ale and Discontinued Operationd

PFRS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resovirces

Y A IR NE AL N N LN RN EN

PFRS7

_F_in_ant.ial_'Insﬁmmmts::Disciosures :

|Amendmeats to PFRS 7: Transidon

Amendmeénts to PAS 39-and PERS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 3%-and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effeciive Dste and
Transidon

Amendments to PRRS 7: Improving Discldsnses about Financial Instrurnents

Amendments to BFRS 7: Disclosutes — Transfeis of Financial Assets

 Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures — Offserting. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilides

Armendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date.of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures
{effective when PFRS 9 is first apphied}

NN ININESNISISIS

PFRS 8

Operating Segments.

PFRS 9

Financil Instroments (2014)

Amendments to PFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation®
(effective Japmary 1,.:2015]

PFES 10

Consolidared Finantial Statements

Amendments 1o PFRS 10: Transidon Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10: Invesonent Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10: Sale or Contribution of Assers between an Investor end its
Assodate-or Joint Veoture @'}:&'ze_'m' daferred indefinite}

Aimendments to PFRS.10: Invéstraent Entities — Applying the Consolidation Excépion

PFR511

Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PERS. 11: Trensidon Guidante

 Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of Iritefests.in Joint Operations

Amendment to PFRS 11: Remeasurement of Previcusly Held Interests-in'a Joint Operation*

(affictive Josisiry 1, 2013}

NOININISISI SN NSNS




. . . » ‘Not Nat.
PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted Adopted Appii'cah'lc
Disclosure 6f Interests.in Other Entities v
Amendments to PERS 12: Transiton Guidance: v
PFRS 12 - — -
Amendments to PFRS 12 Investment Endtes. 4
Amendments.to PFRS 10: Investunent Entities — Applying the Consolidation Exception v
PERS 13 [Fair Value Measurement v
PFRS 14 {Regulstory Deferral Accounts v
PFRS.15  |Revenue from Contracts with Customers v
PFRS16  [Legses* (iffeative Jarivary T, 2019) v
PFRS17  {Insurance Contracts* {yfective Janary 1, 2021 v
Philippine Acconsring Seadards (PAS)
Presentation of Financial Statements o
. Amendmenits to PAS 32 and PAS 1; Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Asising
) : quidaiion
{Revised) - - g y .
Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income: v
Amendinents to PAS1: Disclogure Initiative v
PAS2 I'n'vg:nmde_s : v
Staternent of Cash Flows v
PAS T - ;
Amendments, to PAS % Disclosure Ininative v
|FAS 8 Adcounting Policies; Changes in Accounting Esdmates znd Errots- v
PAS 10 Events After the Reporting Period v
PAS 11 Constraction Coritracts v
Income Taxes v
PAS 12 Amefidments to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assir s
) | Amendments-to PAS 12 - Recognition of Deferzred Tax Assets for Unsealized Losses v
Amendment to PAS 12 - Tax Consequences of Dividends* (gffertivé fansary 1, 2019) v
Property, Plant and Equipment s
PAS 16 Amendments to PAS 16: Bearer Plants™ v
Amendments to PAS $6: Cladficadon of Acceptable Methods.of Depreciation and 7
Amorazation )
PAS 17 Lesses v
PAS1S  |Bmplopee Benefits' i
(Revised) | smendments to PAS19: Défined Benefit Plans - Einployee Conributions™* v
pLoYy:
PAS 20 Accounting.for Government Grints and Disclosure of Government Assistance. v
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Fxchingé Rates v
S m:ﬁmeqt_s:_b}et.[m'esunem-in a Forelgn Opczgﬁbn v
PAS_ 23 Botrowing Costs v
(Revised). [ smendment ro PAS 23: Eligibility for Capitalization v
PAS 24 - .
AL v
(Reviscd) Related Party Disclosures
PAS 26 Accounting and Repotting by Retirement Benefit Plans v
_ 'Separate Financial $tatements. v
PAS 27 . v
. Amepdments 1o PAS 27: Investment Enuoes..
(Revised) : — :
Amendmenrs to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements v
Tnvestments in Associatés end Joint Vennures v
Amendments to PFRS 10: Sale or Contdbution of Assets berwien an Investor and.its v
| Assodite or joint Venture fafectite date deferved indefinitedy
BAS 23 o Amendizients o PAS 28: Invesunent Entities - Applying the Consolidetion Excoption v
Revised) | endment to PAS 26 Measuremant of Investmentin Associates st Fair Value through s
Profit orLoss _
|Amendment to PAS 28; Long-tem Interestin Associates and Joint Venture™ (sffectier Jansary o
1, 2019)
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Econoriies v
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PHILIFPINE FINANCIAT. REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted Not N.m' .
' : i i Adopted | Applicablc
Financial Instruments: Presentation’ v
| Amendmeats to PAS: 32 and PAS 1: Purtable Financial Instruments end Obligations Arising: y
PAS 32 uvn Liquidation** .
Amendments to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Igsues™ v
| Amendments to PAS-32: Offserting Financisl Assets and Financial Liabilities v
PAS 33 Eariiings Pec Share’ /s
PAS34  |lneesim Financial Reposting. v
Tmpaitment of Asseis v
PAS 36 laiiaci _ _ .
Amendment to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-financial Assets v
PAS 37 Provisions, Cortingent Liabilities add Contingent Assets v
Intangible Assets v
PAS 38 Amendments w BAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and v
Amortization
Investment Property- v
Amendment 1o PAS 40: Reclassification to and. from Idvestment Propecty '4
Agriculture v
pasq [ _
Amendments to PAS 41: Bearer Plants v
Philippine Tntcspretations - Internstiorial Fingneial Reporting Iarerpretations. Committee (IFRIC}
IFRICT  |Changes in Exisung Deécommissioning, Restoration and Simflar Lishilides** v
IERIC2  |Members' Share in Co-opesative Entitics and Sicmilax Instruments v
IFRIC Y4 Determining Whethifr an Arrangement-Contains 2 Lease v
IERIC S Rights to Interests Adsing from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental s
: Rehabilitarion Fonds**
Lighilities Adising from Partitipating i a Specific Macket - Waste Electtical and Eléctronic -
IFRICE " - v
Equipment
Applying the Restaternent Approach under PAS 29, Financial Reporting in Hyperinfladonary ;
IFRIC? TR g : ; - o
i Econoinies
Rezssessment of Embedded: Derivatives v
IFRICY e
| Amendments 1o Philippine Interpretation IFRIC~S and PAS 39: Embedded Dedvatives. v
IFRIC10 [Intesiin Finaneial Reporting and Impairment ' e
IFRIC12  |Service Concession Arrangements '
PAS 19 - The Limit on 2 Defined Benefit Assef, Minkmum Funding Requirements and their %
IFRIC 14 mw@n ; — . Misimum Fundi
Amendments 1o Philippine Interpretations IFRIC - 14; Frepayments-of 3 Minimum Fuading v
Requirement and their Interaction :
IFRIC1S  [Hedges of 2 Net Investment in 2 Foreign Operation v
[IFRIC17  |Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners v
IFRIC19  |Esinguishing Financial Lisbilities with Fquity Instruments v
IFRIC 20  [Swipping Costsin the Production Phase of a Surface Mine i
IFRIC21  [Levies v
IFRICE2  |Foreign Currenicy Transaciions and Advance Consideration s
IFRICZ3  |Uncertainty Over Incorne Tax Treatments™ (e January 1, 2019) v
Phiipnpine Intempretations - Standing Intcrprerarions Commitee (SIC}
SIC.7 Introduction of the Huro v
SIC-10 Govemment Assistance - No'Specifie. Relation to Operatiag Activitis v
SIC-15 Opérating Leases - Incentives v
SIC-25 income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entty or its Shareholdess™ v
{S1C-27 Evalusting the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease v
IS_I c-29 Scrvice Concession Arfengemients: Disclosures v
|SIC_-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services*™ v .
[s1c-32  linangible Assets - Web Site Costs v

* These standards will be effective for periods subsequent to. fiscal year 2019 and ate not carly 2dopted by the Company.

“wr Thesd standards have been adapted in the preparation of finincial statemeénty but the Company has no significant transacuons covered
in both years presented. 3






